
 
 
 
 
 
 
PURCHASING DEPARTMENT   Newport News Public Schools 
 
12465 WARWICK BOULEVARD • NEWPORT NEWS, VIRGINIA 23606-3041  757-591-4525/ FAX 757-591-4634 
 

 
February 27, 2019 

Addendum #2 
 
 

 
TO:     ALL OFFERORS 

 
RE:     RFP #013-0-2019LC Group basic life, accidental death and 

dismemberment (AD&D), and group short-term disability 
 

The above referenced RFP is hereby amended and clarified as follows: 
 
I.    Revise due date from February 28, 2019 to March 7, 2019. 
 

II.    Responses to the questions received are as follows: 
 

1. The monthly experience skips every August and September.  Why is it skipped?  We know 
this is a school so it usually runs on a 10-month cycle, but the majority of the time, we see 
the months of June and July skipped.  Are August and September skipped for the 10-month 
cycle, but just later than what we have seen? 

 
Yes, the missing months are due to the 10-month schedule and reflects the month 
premium was received by Hartford, not the month billed. 
 

2. The RFP has 5 census files, but not all of the census files are eligible for Basic Life.  It looks 
like there are 483 active employees and 564 retirees.  This is a total of 1047 total participants, 
but there are 976 on the 1/1/19 experience.  This is about a 7% difference so this is within 
tolerance, but I just want to make sure I am looking at this correctly. 

 
A revised census of active employees (Census 1) is included.  The number of active 
employees covered under the plan has decreased.  Revised retiree census (Census 4 and 
Census 5) have also been provided with additional fields of information.  The census is 
available by contacting USI at claire.harlin@usi.com.  
 

3.   There are multiple classes, but it looks like there are no participants in Class 2.  It looks like 
the BSCL benefit is 2x salary for all participants. 

 
 Class 2 a closed class.  The basic life benefit is 2 x salary up to $100,000 with a 

minimum benefit of $10,000.   
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4.   Over half of the participants are retirees, given this and that they have a different rate than the 

Actives, can we obtain separate experience for Active and separate experience for Retirees? 
 

A detailed life report is included in the Addendum.  Reports that are separate for 
actives and retirees is not available; please use the benefit amount and age as an 
indication of status.  Please contact USI at claire.harlin@usi.com for all new 
attachments. 

 
5. The experience report shows 2,787 STD lives on 1/19, however the census shows 2,330 

(attachment D per the RFP). Why the difference? 
 
The original census did not include the Hybrid VLDP participants who are only 
covered in their first year of employment.  A revised census has been provided.  There 
are two tabs.  The first tab is all employees who are eligible for STD but not a Hybrid 
employee.  The second tab is all eligible Hybrid employees.  The census is available by 
contacting USI at claire.harlin@usi.com.  
 
 

6. On the STD census (attachment D), we will need to be able to break out who is exempt/non-
exempt and who gets the 10, 11 and 12-month benefit duration. There are six different rates 
to line up with it. Can we please ask for a revision or key? 

 
The exempt/non-exempt status has been included in a revised census.  The census is 
available by contacting USI at claire.harlin@usi.com.  
 

7. What benefit should I quote for those employees they’re asking us to consider adding to 
STD? 
 
Assume these employees will have the same benefit as current active employees. 
 

8. With your due date of February 28th, you have a holiday in that period.  While I’m sure every 
competing carrier can provide you with a proposal by that date, it would be my suggestion 
based upon my experience that you provide a due date at least one week later.  With the 
amount of risk involved for a group of your size and industry, you would likely get back 
better offers if each bidder is provided that extra time! 

 
An extension is being granted to March 7, 2019 at 2:00 p.m. 
 

9. Can the one electronic copy be provided via USB drive (a/k/a Thumb drive)?  In the written 
information below from the RFP (page 7 of 25 in the pdf), it speaks to a “CD must…”.  We 
just want to make sure of your requirements here.  Thanks. 
 
b.           Submit the original, six (6) hard copies and one (1) electronic copy (CD or USB 
drive) of the proposal to the Issuing Office.  Proposals must be sealed and received and date 
time stamped by the Issuing Office prior to the due date and time specified in this RFP. 
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A few paragraphs later, the wording is: 
 
2)           The CD must be a: 
a) "standard" compact disk (CD) [using 780 nm wavelength laser diode light]; or a digital 
video disk or "digital versatile disc" (DVD) [using 650 nm wavelength laser diode light - 
Note: 'Blue-ray™ disks are not acceptable]. The media shall be capable of being read in a 
standard personal computer (PC) CD or DVD-drive.  The media shall use a "standard" CD-
file system format [ISO 9660], be virus-free, and may contain PC-files in any of the following 
formats: 
 
A USB drive is allowed (and required for USI’s copy). 
 

10. Can you provide an updated STD census that lists the STD class (Exempt/Non-Exempt) for 
each covered employee and their current sick leave balance in days? 
 
The exempt/non-exempt status has been included in a revised census.  The census is 
available by contacting USI at claire.harlin@usi.com.  
 

11. The RFP requests optional quotes to add the employees on Censuses 1 and 2 to the 
STD.  Can you clarify which policy class and benefit we should quote for each? 

 
Assume these employees will have the same benefit as current active employees. 

 
12. How is the employer’s portion of FICA handled?  Does the employer submit it, does the 

Hartford pay it and bill the employer or does the Hartford pay it with no charge back? 
 

Newport News Public Schools is responsible for the ERFICA on the STD plan. 
 

13. Does USI receive a commission on the life and STD policies?  If so, what percentage should 
be built into our rates? 

 
USI does not receive commissions.  Newport News Public Schools will not pay 
commissions on these lines of coverage. 
 

14. Please provide a census that includes the number of accumulated sick days per employee; or 
if that is not available please provide an average number of sick days for exempt and non-
exempt employees. 

 
A revised census is provided with accumulated sick leave balances and denotes exempt 
and non-exempt.  The census is available by contacting USI at claire.harlin@usi.com.  
 

15. Please provide a claims report on a paid basis as opposed to incurred (or paid/incurral with 
paid claims and paid premium if available). 

 
A paid claim report is provided.  Please contact USI at claire.harlin@usi.com for all new 
attachments. 
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16. There is also a request to add employees from census 1 and 2 onto the STD plan.  Please 
indicate what rate segment these employees would be classified under and also what benefit 
they would be eligible for.  Do they have accumulated sick leave and if so what is the 
average number of days employees have? 

 
These employees will be provided the same benefit as current active employees based on 
accumulated sick leave.  These balances have been provided on a separate revised 
census that is a combination of the employees who were originally separated on census 1 
and 2.  The census is available by contacting USI at claire.harlin@usi.com.  

 
17. There is a difference in lives between the premium report which shows 2,787 lives for 

January 2019 and the census 3 which includes 2,300 lives as being eligible for the inforce 
STD plan.  

o Please explain this difference. 
o The census does not provide the detail needed to break out employees into these 6 

rate segments.  
  

Experience Group Lives Rate Rate Description Billed Premium 

EXEMPT 10 MONTH EE'S 1794 6.098 PER EE $10,939.81 

EXEMPT 11 MONTH EE'S 128 6.795 PER EE $869.76 

EXEMPT 12 MONTH EE'S 236 7.47 PER EE $1,762.92 

NON-EXEMPT 10 MONTH EE'S 443 4.489 PER EE $1,988.63 

NON-EXEMPT 11 MONTH EE'S 25 5.108 PER EE $127.70 

NON-EXEMPT 12 MONTH EE'S 161 5.569 PER EE $896.61 

Note this total lives does not match the census 3? 2787 5.951   16585.43 

 
The original census did not include the Hybrid VLDP participants who are only 
covered in their first year of employment.  A revised census has been provided.  The 
census is available by contacting USI at claire.harlin@usi.com. 

 
18. Please provide a detailed claims listing for the last 5 years, breaking out active from retiree 

claims for each year. 
 

A detailed life report going back to 1/1/2014 is included in the Addendum.  Reports that 
are separate for actives and retirees is not available; please use the benefit amount and 
age as an indication of status.  Please contact USI at claire.harlin@usi.com for all new 
attachments. 
 

19. We’ll need census clarity for active EEs eligible for LIFE.  Exhibits B and C sum up to 667 
actives (484+183), yet billing for recent months is showing 410 active lives.  Are they under-
reporting the billing, or is the census inaccurate with too many people on it? 
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A revised census of active employees (Census 1) is included.  The number of active 
employees covered under the plan has decreased.  The census is available by contacting 
USI at claire.harlin@usi.com. 

 
20. “Attachment E – Census 4” census (497 retirees) doesn’t have any dates of birth.  Please 

provide an updated census with DOBs. 
 

A revised retiree census is available with the missing information.  The census is 
available by contacting USI at claire.harlin@usi.com.  

 
21. If awarded this contract, how many booklets will be needed; is the expectation to print 1 

booklet for each employee? (this is referencing RFP page 6, item 11) 
 

Provide one (1) booklet per employee plus a small supply for new hires and new 
retirees. 

 
22. Are all of the EE’s being covered considered non-hybrid EE’s and not eligible for coverage 

under the VLDP plan through the state or VACORP? 
 

Hybrid employees are covered for STD during their first year of service when they are 
ineligible for STD under the VLDP plan.  NNPS terminates them from the STD 
coverage at the end of one year of service. 

 
23. For active employees the census is missing exempt/non-exempt status and the number of 

days in their sick bank for each employee. 
 

The exempt/non-exempt status has been included in a revised census.  The census is 
available by contacting USI at claire.harlin@usi.com.  

 
24. For retirees prior to 07/01/98 the census is missing zip code & gender. 
 

A revised retiree census is available with the missing information.  The census is 
available by contacting USI at claire.harlin@usi.com.  

 
25. For retirees on or after 07/01/98 the census is missing zip code, gender, & DOB.  
 

A revised retiree census is available with the missing information.  The census is 
available by contacting USI at claire.harlin@usi.com.  

 
26. Have there been any plan changes? If so please indicate the date of change & the plan design 

change (changed from x to y). 
 

No changes have been made to the plan. 
 

27. Since there is no waiver on the life are we expected to take over disabled lives? If so please 
provide a complete census on these EE’s. 
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We would expect the successful carrier to take over disabled lives.  We will provide a 
census of those affected employees to the successful carrier during implementation.   

 
28. Is there an individual life claim listing in order to determine active vs retiree claims? 
 

A detailed life report is included in the Addendum.  Reports that are separate for 
actives and retirees is not available; please use the benefit amount and age as an 
indication of status.  Please contact USI at claire.harlin@usi.com for all new 
attachments. 

 
29. STD paid claims were provided on an incurred basis. Please provide the same monthly report 

but on a monthly paid basis regardless of incurred date. (Hartford can produce this report) 
 

A paid claim report is provided.  Please contact USI at claire.harlin@usi.com for all new 
attachments. 

 
30. For those classes not currently eligible for STD, what plan design should be quoted? 
 

These employees will be provided the same benefit as current active employees based on 
accumulated sick leave.  These balances have been provided on the revised census.  The 
census is available by contacting USI at claire.harlin@usi.com.  

 
31. The STD duration is indicated as “2 times the number of days in Your contract with Your 

Employer to a maximum of 104 weeks of benefits”.  Please provide further details regarding 
this in order to determine more accurately duration of benefits for each class.  For example 
does a 10 month contract EE get 86.6 weeks of benefits [(10 months x 4.33 weeks per month 
x 5 days per week x 2)/5 day work week]? Please provide specifics. 

 
Your example correctly illustrates how maximum benefit duration is calculated. 

 
32. If a 10 or 11-month contract employee becomes totally disabled while school is out for the 

summer, will they receive any STD benefits during that time or will STD benefits start once 
they exhaust their sick leave & the new school year (contract period) has started, assuming 
they still meet the definition of total disability? 

 
Benefits will begin once they exhaust sick leave, regardless of whether the disability 
occurred during school or during the summer months. 

 
33. Will an e-signature be accepted on the two forms? 
 

No. 
 

34. As part of the RFP format, please confirm the “Scope of Work” mentioned on Page 12 is the 
referring to the “Statement of Needs”. If this is the same document, please confirm it should 
be included as part of Section/Tab 3 of the proposal package. 
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Yes, “Scope of Work” should have read “Statement of Needs”.  Please include as a part 
of Section 3 of your proposal. 
 

35. Is the Certification Regarding Debarment Form (Section G, Page 23) a required form in the 
proposal package? If so, please confirm where it should be included – what section/tab. 

 
The debarment tab can be submitted with the coversheet and nondisclosure form.  

 
36. We are requesting/inquiring about an extension of time for the submission since not all of the 

needed information for underwriting is available at this time. Thank you. 
 
An extension is being granted to March 7, 2019 at 2:00 p.m. 
 

37. Please provide a listing of individual paid claims (including a designation of active employee 
or retiree). 

 
A detailed life report is included in the Addendum.  Reports that are separate for 
actives and retirees is not available; please use the benefit amount and age as an 
indication of status.  Please contact USI at claire.harlin@usi.com for all new 
attachments. 

 
38. Retirees who retired on or after 1998 have a life benefit reduction that states, “there will be a 

25% reduction of the already reduced amount for the first three years after you retire.” What 
happens after three years? Does the amount change from this time on? 

 
During the first year of retirement, the retiree is entitled to the amount of insurance in 
place at retirement.  In years 2 – 4, the benefit declines by 25% of the original amount 
each year.  The ending benefit is one-half of annual salary prior to retirement and does 
not reduce further.  Example:  Annual salary at retirement = $40,000.  Year 1 – benefit 
= $80,000; Year 2 – benefit = $60,000; Year 3 – benefit = $40,000; From year 4 on – 
benefit = $20,000. 

 
39. Retirees who retired prior to 1998 has coverage that does not reduce or terminate. However, 

the volume for these retirees is listed as $5,000 or $10,000 despite the maximum being 
$100,000. Please clarify. 

 
The benefit for this closed class is either $5,000 or $10,000 as denoted on the census. 

 
40. Per the cost exhibit, there are no longer ‘half time” employees. Can this life class be 

removed? 
 

Yes. 
 

41. Please provide sick leave balances.  
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Accumulated sick leave balances have been added to the revised employee census.  The 
census is available by contacting USI at claire.harlin@usi.com.  

 
42. The Virginia Retirement System Hybrid plan applies to those hired on or after 1/1/14, 

however new hires appear to also be on this STD plan. Does Newport News City SD 
participate in the VRS Hybrid plan? 

 
Hybrid employees are covered for STD during their first year of service when they are 
ineligible for STD under the VLDP plan.  NNPS terminates them from the STD 
coverage at the end of one year of service. 

 
43. Is the amount per day based on the school or calendar day? 
 

Benefits are paid based on days that the employee would have worked (a school day). 
 

44. The STD certificate says the duration is 2 times the number of days in your contract with 
Your Employer to a maximum of 104 weeks.  

a. What is the amount of days in the contract?  
b. Is it different for each employee?  
c. If so, can we get that information added to the census? 

 
The amount of days in a contract varies by position and can range from 182 days to 245 
days.  The most common number of days in a contract is the 192 days for which 
teachers are paid.  This information has been added to the three active employee 
census. 

 
45. Can we get DOBs and genders for the retirees on Census 4? 

 
A revised retiree census is available with the missing information.  The census is 
available by contacting USI at claire.harlin@usi.com.  

 
 
III.   All other provisions of the RFP shall remain unchanged. 
 
 
 
 
 

Signature:    (Offeror) 
 

Sincerely, 
 

Lisa A. Cumming,  
CPPO, C.P.M., VCO  
Director of Procurement 
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